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Festive Anniversary
Includes Open House

Residents of the entire Indi-
an Wells Valley as well as all
other communities are invited
to participate in the 25th An-
niversary celebration that will
take place at the Naval Weap-
ons Center this Saturday, No-
vember 9.

Special buses will be oper-
ating during the “"Open
House” period and will be
used to transport visitors to the
three main areas in which the
25th anniversary celebration
activities will be centered —
namely, the Weapon Exhibit
Center, Michelson Laboratory
and the Naval Air Facility.

Visitors to the Weapon Exhi-
bit Center will see many new
displays which have been re-
cently added to make this an
outstanding exhibit of naval

| SHOWBOAT

FRIDAY NOVEMBER 8
“BOOM"” (109 Min.)
Elizabeth Taylor, Richard Burton,
Noel Coward
7:30 P.M.

(Drama) Based on o Tennessee Williams
play. Liz portrays Mrs. Goforth, on ex-
tremely rich but lonely, and brutally in-
different woman. Her meeting with an im-
poverished poet ot o fabulous island villa
sets loose her violent tantrums. Here is o
razor-sharp diclogue, psychotic dramo, ultro-
modern setting. (Adult.)

Short: "“Hiway Hecklers” (7 Min.)
SATURDAY NOVEMBER 9
—MATINEE—

“FLIPPER” (92 Min.)

Chuck ‘Connors
1:00 P.M.

Shorts: "Triplet Trouble” (7 Min.)
“Canadian Mounties” (Ne. 10, 13 Min.)
——EVENING—

“EVE” (93 Min.)

Robert Walker, Celeste Yarnell

7:30 P.M.

(Adventure) Rescued from o plane crash
in the Amazon by o beautiful white God-
dess, the pilot evades fierce savages to
seek on Inca treasure ond the story of her
past. The original flower child—worshipped
by headhunters! (Adult, Youth.)

Short: ""Unarmed In Africa™ (19 Min.)

SUNDAY-MONDAY NOVEMBER 10-11
“HAMMER HEAD” (99 Min.))
Vince Edwards, Judy Geeson,
Peter Vaughn
(Spy Drama) Secret agent attends o
“happening” thot storts a trail to inter-
national criminals who aftempt to steal
NATO secrets. In the “Goldfinger” style
with fantastic yochts, gorgeous girls and
thrilling action galore! (Adult.)
Short: “'King of Madison Avenue” (17 Min.)

TUESDAY-WEDNESDAY NOVEMBER 12-13
“VILLA RIDES” (125 Min.)
Robert Mitchum, Yul Brynner
7:30 P.M.

(Adventure) Colorful epic of fomed Mex-
ican hero turns Mitchum inte o one man
Air Force as he aids Pancho Villa in fight-
ing onti-revolutionaries. Romantic rebels,
plotting generals and o screen full of he-
man action. (Adult.)

THURSDAY-FRIDAY NOVEMBER 14-15
“A TIME TO SING"” (92 Min.)
Hank Williams, Jr., Shelley Fabares
7:30 P.M.
(Country/Musical) The mon who storted
the country-music storm over Nashville.
Hank leaves his uncle’s tobacco farm to
work his way into the singing business as
his on-ogain, off-again romonce with pret-

ty Shelley progresses. (Adult, Youth.)
Shorts: “Cat Above, Mouse Below” (7 Min.)
“Half Time, U.5.A." (9 Min.)

ordnance, all of which was de-
veloped or tested at this Cen-
ter.

Among the new exhibits is
the outer casing of an atomic
bomb accompanied by the re-
cently released story of the
Center’s work for the Manhat-
tan Project in World War |l
and its later work for the At-
omic Energy Commission on
explosive components for nu-
clear weapons.

A special anniversary exhib-
it will show photographs and
documents of the early days of
the Center. Motion pictures on
both early and contemporary
weapon projects will be shown.
Of special interest will be a
new film on “25 Years of Nav-
al Weaponry.”

During the period that the
Exhibit Center is open, as
shown in the accompanying
program, the Maturango Mu-
seum will be open with its his-
torical displays on the local
area. At 10:30 am. the Cen-
ter’s Fire Department will dem-
onstrate its fire fighting tech-
niques against a blazing struc-
ture which will be located op-
posite the Exhibit Center on
Halsey.

At the Naval Air Facility
from 9:30 a.m. to 12:30 p.m.
there will be a showing of a
cross-section of different air-
craft with a wide range of
bomb and missile loadings. A
demonstration will be given of
the remote control system for
drone aircraft. At 10 a.m. a
tethered hot-air balloon will
make an ascent to 500 feet.

A full spectrum of NWC
technical projects will be dis-
played in Michelson Laboratory
between 9 a.m. and 2 p.m.

Among the items on display
are the following: a working
model of a SNIPE missile track-
ing a miniature target; a SIDE-
WINDER missile tracking heat
targets; a head - coupled TV
which operates as an extension
of man’s senses; Vu Sphere; a
videosonic trainer; a voice re-
corder which shows you your
voice pattern on an oscillo-
scope; the million - volt X-ray
room; a tape operated machine
for automatic production of
metal parts; a glass blowing
exhibit; a wide variety of range
instruments; the Chaparral
surface - to - air missile sys-
tem; and a photo lab tour.
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CORONA LABORATORIES — Aerial view
shows complex of Corona Laboratories. In
a regrouping of selected Navy laboratories
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into Centers in July, 1967, Corona became

part of NWC. The

Corona Laboratories em-

ploy approximately 1,000 personnel.
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Copt. M. R. Etheridge
Present Commander

Capt. §. E. Burroughs
First Commander

MICHELSON LABORATORY is the nerve center for meost
of NWC’s Research and Develcpment effort. Dedicated on
May 8B, 1948, this 10 million dollar facility houses ten acres
of technical shops and specialized equipment.
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NWC 25th Anniversary

FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 8
8:00 AM.

Reception Center for visitors open ot
Main Gate. All out-of-town guests other
than those arriving ot Air Facility are re-
quested to stop here upon arrival.

9:00 A.M.-12:00 NOON
1:00 P.M.-2:30 P.M.

Laboratory.
9:00 AM.-12:00 NOON
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SATURDAY, MOVEMBER 9
9:00 A.M.-2:00 P.M.
Open House:
—Buses leave from parking lot at main
entrance to Michelson Laboratory.
9:00 AM.-2:00 P.M.

apon displays and p display of
early station.
9:00 A.M.-2:00 P.M.
Exhibits.

9:00 A.M.-12:30 P.M.

—Naval Air Facility activities including
aircraft and weapons, and a balloon
ascent.

10:30 AM.

—Fire fighting d tion opposi
Maturange Museum.

All Open House events open to the public
with a special welcome to oll of Indian
Wells Valley and neighboring communities.

1:00 P.M.-4:30 P.M.

Informal Mix and Meset time at the Bare-
foot Bar ot the Commissioned Officers’
Mess. Also an appropriate time for local
persons to invite visitors for visits or re-

ceptions in homes.

6:00 P.M
lak \ ption, € issioned OFfi-
cors’ Mess.

7:00 P.M.

25th Anniversary dinner featuring talks
by Rear Admiral 5. E. Burroughs, USN (Ret.)
and Vice Admiral John Hayward, USN
(Ret.). Attendance by reservation. (Phone
71759 in mornings.)

8:00 P.M.

Anniversary Balls:

—NWC Anniversary & Marine Ball (fer-
mal) at Community Center. Building
open ot 8:00 p.m.; Ball begins at 9:00
p.m. For invited guests of Center and
NWC Marines.

~Chief Petty Officers’ Club (semi-formal).
Open to members and guests of mem:

Holiday Hours

The following holiday hours
of operation are announced for
China Lake facilities over Vet-
erans’ Day, November 11.

The China Lake Golf Course,
Center Theater, China Lake
Bowl, Golf Course Snack Bar,
Malt Shop, Fedeco,Shopping
Bag, Enlisted Men’s Club, and
Beauty Shop will be open as
usual.

The gymnasium and swim-
ming pool will be open from
1 to 5 p.m., the Youth Center
from 1 to 5 pm. and 7 to 9
p.m., and the Auto Hobby
Shop from 12 to 5 p.m.

All other facilities will re-
main closed Veterans' Day.

The Center Restaurant will
have special week-end hours
due to the NWC anniversary
celebration: Saturday, Novem-
ber 9, 6:30 a.m. to 7 p.m.; Sun-
day, November 10, 7 a.m. to
1 p.m.

Naval Weapons Center Mission

The Naval Weapons Center is a major laboratory of the

Chief of Naval Material. Its formal mission is to conduct a

program of warfare analysis, research, development, test,

evaluation, systems integration, and Fleet engineering

support in naval weapon systems, principally for air

warfare, and to conduct investigations into related fields

of science and technology.

Established in 1943, the Center was known as the Naval
Ordnance Test Station until July 1967. Over the years, the
Center has applied its scientific creativity and engineering

skills in the flields of rockets, guided missiles, under-

water ordnance, aircraft fire-control systems,

limited -wariare weapons.

and

Present Center assignments include analytical and

experimental derivation of advanced concepts for total

weapon systems and the technical management of major

system development projects as well as other facets

of research and technology. Also, the Center provides

engineering services required for successiul production

of new systems and their introduction into the fleet.

Plaza Parking

On Friday, November 8, dur-
ing Vice Admiral Thomas Con-
nolly’s presentation at the Cen-
ter Theater, all shoppers are
urged to conduct any business
at Bennington Plaza prior to
2:00 p.m. or after 4:30 p.m.
due to parking requirements in
the immediate vicinity of the
theater.

From:

Chief of Naval Operations

As you celebrate your 25th anniversary, | want to pass my
personal congratulations to the NWC and those who have
helped make the Center’s record of achievements so brilli-
ant. | count my tour of duty at China Lake as one of the
more challenging and rewarding ones.

Your superb performance in providing our country’s mili-
tary forces with new capabilities has earned worldwide recog-
nition of your ingenuity and technical expertise.

My best wishes for continued success in your vitally im-

portant work.

(s) T. H. Moorer
Admiral, U.S. Navy
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* DIVINE
T SERVICES

Protestant—(All Faith Chapel)—

Morning Worship—8:15 and 11 a.m.
Sunday School—9:30 a.m., Chapel An-
nexes 1, 2, 3, 4 (Dorms 5, 6, 7, 8) lo-
cated opposite Center Restourant.

Roman Catholic (All Faith Chapel)—
Holy Mass—7, 9:30 a.m., and 12:30 p.m.
Sunday.

Daily Mass—11:30 a.m. in Blessed Sacra-
ment Chapel. Saturday, 8:30 a.m.

Confessions—7 to 8:00 p.m. Saturday.

NWC Jewish Services (East Wing All Faith
Chapel}—8 p.m. every first and third
Friday.

Sabbath School—10 a.m. to noon, every
first and third Saturday.

Unitarian Fellowship—(Chopel Annex 95, 95
King Ave.}-Sundays, 7:30 p.m.
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Entertainment
Info As Close
As Your Phone

Visitors to the Center during
the 25th Anniversary Celebra-
tion will be able to take ad-
vantage of a new system for
disseminating recreational and
entertainment information for
the local area.

Special Services has inaugu-
rated Code-a-phone, which for
all intents and purposes means
that you may get timely infor-
mation, day or night, on the
availability of recreational ev-
ents, movies, etc. simply by
picking up the phone and dial-
ing 72411.

All times, dates and titles
will be continually updated

with this system.. ... . Civonr )12, Blueridge Rd. ... ..

ada.l Loale!

{.OXE.

From: Commandant, Marine Corps

1 wish to extend my sincere congratulations on the achieve-
ment of 25 years of outstanding weapons development. Your
unique contribution to the strength of this nation during
this period is an accomplishment of major significance within

the Defense Establishment.

It is my understanding that a joint Marine Corps Birth-
day and 25th Anniversary Ball will be held at the Naval
Weapons Center on Nov. 9. Although the sharing of the Ma-
rine Corps Birthday celebration in this manner is an unusual
event, | can think of no scientific and technological or-
ganization with whom marines can more proudly recognize
a long period of outstanding service to our country.

May your next 25 years be as productive as the last.

(s) Leonard F. Chapmen, Jr.

Commandant, U.S. Marine Corps

Top NWC Civilian

DR. THOMAS S. Amlie is the
current NWC Technical Di-
rector. He replaced Dr. Wm.
B. McLean, who is now the
Technical Director of the
Naval Underwater Weapons
Center. Dr. Amlie has been
at the Center since July,
1952 and has served as a
Naval Officer and as a proj-
ect engineer. He resides at

et AW wan)
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Veterans’ Day
Announced

The observance of Veterans
Day in thousands of American
communities on Nov. 11 will
be celebrated this year on the
50th anniversary of the end of
World War L

The annual Nov. 11 cere-
mony at Arlington National
Cemetery begins at 11 a.m.
and is open to the public. The
ceremony is sponsored by the
Veterans Day National Com-
mittee with Administrator of
Veterans Affairs William J.
Driver serving as chairman.

Service organiza6ions rotate
as hosts with the American
Legion serving this year. Le-
gion national commander Wil-
liam C. Doyle will be one of
the featured speakers.

Since the armistice ending
World War | was effective at
11 a.m. Nov. 11, 1918, Con-
gress proclaimed that date a
national holiday.

The name was changed from
Armistice Day to Veterans
Day following World War II
and the Korean Conflict so all
of the nation’s veterans—past,
present and future — could be

-henored at the same time.

s
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Capt. S. E. Burroughs
1943-1945

e

Capt. F. L. Ash\;rorih Capt. W. W. Hollister Capt. C. B]enman, Jr. Capt. Leon Grabowsky Capt. John |. Hardy
1957-1961

1955-1957

Capt. J. B. Sykes
1945-1947

19471949

1961-1964

RAdm. W. G. Switzer Capt. W. V. R. Vieweg Capt. P. D. Stroop

1949-1952

1964

1952-1953

1964-1967

Capt. D. B.
1953-1955

Capt. G. H. Lowe
1967

Capt. R. F. Sellars
1955

Young

Capt. M. R. Etheridge
1967-

Burroughs and Lauritsen Prime Movers for Center

(Continued from Page 10)

cussing the problem, especial-
ly with Air Command down at
Santa Ana, we thought that
this particular territory where
we are now located was the
most suitable, in fact it was
almost the only thing that was
not already appropriated by
the Air Corps.

Timing Right

The proposal for a new fa-
cility on the West Coast reach-
ed the Bureau of Ordnance at
a most fortunate time. The
first large - scale rocket pro-
gram of the Navy was just get-
ting underway and the need
for facilities for development
and testing of the rockets and
for training Fleet squadrons
in their use was clearly appar-
ent in the top echelons of the
Navy and in the Fleet.

The large program which
called for the rapid equipping
of thousands of Fleet aircraft
with rockets had its beginnings
in the spring of 1943 after the
British had a series of success-
ful attacks on enemy subma-
rines with rockets having heads
of solid steel instead of explo-
sives.

Adm. King Signs Letter

The German submarine was
then the U.S. Navy’'s number
one problem and Adm. Ernest
King, Commander in Chief of
the U.S. Fleet, wasted no time
in authorizing a large program
for forward - firing anti-sub-
marine rockets, the 3.5-inch
aircraft rocket. The letter of
June 7, 1943 from King's of-
fice became the justification
for the subsequent expenditure
of funds by the Bureau of Ord-
nance to implement the pro-
posal for a West Coast prov-
ing ground. !

The Chief of the Bureau of
Ordnance was RAdm. W. H. P.
Blandy. He, along with Capt.
William Moses and Capt.
James Byrnes, were the chief
proponents in the Bureau for
the Station at the time of the
founding.

The change in concept be-
tween the first proposal and
the official establishment is
significant. Burroughs’ first
thoughts appear to have been
for a large proving ground for
aviation ordnance.

Concept Expanded

On the basis of the CalTech
needs this concept was ex-
panded to meet all forms of
wartime rocket work. By the
time final plans were being
prepared Burroughs was also
thinking the new station could
become a kind of American
Peenemunde where new wea-
pons could be developed in se-
crecy.

It is impossible to trace the
individual influences on the
wording of the final order of
November 8 that established
the station. However, the main
content originated in Blandy’s
office. On November 2 Blan-
dy sent a memo to the Secre-
tary of the Navy recommend-
ing the establishment of the
Naval Ordnance Test Station,
a name that Blandy personal-
ly endorsed in rejecting oth-
€ers.

He recommended this sta-
tion “have as its primary func-
tion the research, develop-
ment, and test of weapons
with emphasis on those of air-
craft; at the present time those
of rockets. The station will
have the additional function of
furnishing primary training,
especially aircraft, in the use

of newly developed weapons.”. ment faeility. ' 11113 w0 .o
v ! e , W oo Tatbuiandd ferid adlt

. &3 1 .

ver'nt wald

“So the Navy started to look
into this problem and one day
when we had a demonstration
at Goldstone, a number of Na-
vy officers were aboard the
airplane back to Burbank.
Among them was Capt. Bur-
roughs who was one of our
staunchest supporters. He had
for a long time been advocat-
ing that the Navy should have
its own facilities and not rely
on a little piece of real estate
that had been borrowed from
the Army.

“So on this trip back to Bur-
bank we flew over various
parts of the Mojave Desert.
Among other things, we flew
over this area and they agreed
that we had made the right
choice, that this was the right
place for the Navy to estab-
lish a station.”

Proposing a station and
finding a suitable location are
distinctly different from ob-
taining official approval and
funding.

Knox Signs Order

Six days later when Secre-
tary of Navy Frank Knox sign-
ed the official order establish-
ing the station the mission
statement was cut to “re-
search, development and test
of weapons” without any re-
striction as to the type of wea-
pons.

The magic piece of paper
that Knox signed on Novem-
ber 8, 25 years ago, put thous-
ands of people to work, trans-
formed a desolate desert area
into a beehive of activity, and
provided the Navy with a large
wartime test and develop-
ment facility. The document
signed that day would in time
result in the Navy's largest
weapon research and develop-

McLean Receives
High Fed Award

(Continued from Page 9)

Also, in July, 1956, the first
liquid - propelled rocket sled
was fired at SNORT. Shortly
before, a SNORT sled topped
previous Center records with
a 1,350 mile-per-hour run on
July 6.

Entirely developed at China
Lake was Sidewinder, the air-
to-air guided missile, original-
ly conceived by technical di-
rector Dr. William B. McLean,
who, in December, 1956, re-
ceived a $25,000 superior ac-
complishment award, the high-
est award ever made by the
Government in recognition of
an employee's superior serv-
ice.

Sidewinder became opera-
tional with the Fleet in mid-
1956, and was adopted by the
U.S. Air Force and NATO
countries. It has proved itself
a reliable weapon in Vietnam.

In a span of 25 years, NWC
has deweloped rockets and mis-
siles with the beginning of Ho-
ly Moses, a 5-inch high - veloc-
ity airqraft rocket, which broke
the enemy’s back in the Bat-
tle of the Bulge; Tiny Tim, a
11.75-inch aircraft rocket, with
a Sunday-punch that left the
Korean Reds reeling; RAM, an
aircraft rocket, which could
pierce 12 inches of tank arm-
or; Lark, another spectacular
weapon of the Bumble Bee
family; and Mighty Mouse, a
2.75-inch folding - fin aircraft
rocket.

Others have been Sidewind-
er, probably the most widely
used air-to-air missile in mili-
tary service today; Zuni, a 5.0-
inch folding - fin air-to-ground

i 3
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| Second T.D. |

DR. F. W. BROWN succeeded
Dr. L. T.E. Thompson as
Technical Director of NOTS
(now NWC) October 15, 1951.
Born in Enid, Oklahoma, he
received his Ph.D. in physics
from the University of Illi-
nois. In June 1954 he be-
came director of the National
Bureau of Standards Labora-
tory at Boulder, Colorado. He
retired last year with 25
years of Federal Service.

et Assisted Torpedo); ASROC,
a surface - launched antisub-
marine weapon.

In addition, NWC has con-
tributed to Polaris, Caleb,
High-Hoe, Terasca, SLV (Soft-
Landing Vehicle); the testing
of Bullpup; porpoise studies;
Seal.ab; and more recently an
arsenal of Free-Fall weapons;
Shrike, an antiradar missile;
Snipe, a self-propelled, televi-
sion-guided air-to-surface wea-
pon; and Condor, a standoff
missile using television hom-
ing' AN 2 |
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BY AL CHRISTMAN

How did it all start?

This is the question many
are asking as the Naval Weap-
ons Center celebrates its 25th
birthday. This is also one of
the questions presented to
some of the Center's “found-
ing fathers” as part of a joint
historical project of the Naval
Weapons Center and the Of-
fice of Naval History.

This project, which will cul-
minate in published interpre-
tive histories on the early pe-
riod of the Center, is not yet
complete; however, it is possi-
ble to extract from the draft
and fr om interviews enough
information to answer the
question of “how it all got
started.”

First Center Commander

S. E. Burroughs, Jr., the
Center’s first Commanding Of-
ficer (now Rear Admiral re-
tired), was a key figure in set-
ting in motion the events that
resulted in the establishment
of NWC. Lt. Burroughs as an
aviator and as an ordnance of-
ficer in pre-World War II days
knew what it was to fight un-
successfully for experimental
funds for better aircraft weap-
ons.

Of this period he later com-
mented, “Red Schoeffel (now
Rear Admiral Malcolm Schoef-
fel, Retired) and | drew up a
very modest budget; | think
it was $120,000 we wanted for
research and development
work in aviation ordnance. We
never got a nickel. We could
get money for production, .
but not for research and de-
velopment.

“There just wasn’'t anybody
really interested in aviation ex-
cept Schoeffel and myself in
that Bureau (at that time)
. .. I know a great many non-
fliers who thought these fliers
were just a bunch having fun
flying around in the air . . .”

WWII Proved Value

It took World War II to prove
the hard way the value of air-
craft in modern combat, as
well as the need for weapons
designed specifically for aeri-
al use. Commander Burroughs
as a squadron commander in
the war in the Pacific would
have experiences that would
influence his later efforts in
proposing a new proving
ground for air weapons.

Burroughs recalled, "l was
influenced greatly by our feel-
ings of frustration which a lot
of people felt. The torpedoes
we had didn‘t do anything at
Midway. . . . We sent out 43
torpedoes from the carriers,
and as far as | know there
wasn‘t a single hit registered.
All but three of the planes
were shot down. But most of
them dropped their ‘fish’ and
what happened to the ‘fish’ no-
body knew.”

In the spring of 1943 Bur-
roughs, a decorated combat
aviator, was rotated back to
duty in the Bureau of Ord-
nance in Washington where he
became the Head of the Avia-
tion Ordnance Section of the
Research Division. A result
of Burroughs’ tour of various

ordnance facilities, particular--

ly that of Eglin Field, Florida,

was the recommendation that
the Navy obtain “a very large
area where all the testing of
weapons by airplanes could be
carried out.”

Visits Goldstone Lake

Shortly afterward Burroughs
visited Goldstone Lake near
Barstow, to witness some rock-
et tests being conducted by
the California Institute of
Technology under Dr. C. C.
Lauritsen. Burroughs’ recol-
lection of the visit follows:
*“ . .. Charlie Lauritsen talked
me into getting into an air-
plane and firing some of those
rockets. And I was very much
impressed with the CalTech
group and what they were do-
ing and the limited facilities.

“I expressed to Charlie
Lauritsen the feeling that we
needed a very large station to
conduct all the things that I
felt were needed in the avia-
tion weapons field, particular-
ly with accent on testing at
that time. He jumped right in
and said it was a wonderful
idea.”

To understand Lauritsen’s
enthusiasm for a new proving
ground we need to back up to
the spring of 1941 when Laur-
itsen first became convinced
of the potential of rockets as
weapons.

Lauritsen’s account of that
period was: “In May of 1941
Dr. (Lawrence) Hafstad and I
went to UK (United Kingdom)
to discuss with our colleagues
over there many of the mili-
tary problems.

“l was very much impress-
ed by the performance of their
rockets . . . | don’t think they
ever shot down any bombers,
at least | did not see any and
| have not seen any records
of it, but they made a beau-
tiful fireworks display over
Hyde Park across the street
from the Grosvenor House
where we were trying to get
some sleep.

Submits Report

“When we got back from
the UK, I submitted a report
to Dr. Vannevar Bush (Head of
the National Defense Research
Committee). One of the main
things I recommended was
that we should produce a bet-
ter propellant for rockets, a
dry extruded propellant, and
also put on a more substantial
project for rockets. Well, Bush
with his characteristic expres-
sion said, ‘Well, why don’t you
do something about it?’ So the
monkey was on my back.”

In the months ahead Laurit-
sen as Vice Chairman of the
NDRC for Armor and Ord-
nance fought hard for a large
rocket program. The greatest
obstacles were indifference
and a general lack of confi-
dence in rockets.

To overcome this, the early
goal was to produce as
promptly as possible rockets
which would demonstrate the
practicality of this approach.
The first rocket development
under Lauritsen’s NDRC group
was a target rocket for train-
ing gunners.

This unsophisticated rocket

but also pointed up the need

for improved firing ranges if
more accurate rockets for tac-
tical purposes were to be de-
veloped. Lauritsen’s account of
the episode that opened the
way to the first solution of the
range problem is as follows:;

“We went out to visit the
Commanding General at March
Field armed with some of our
target rockets, and he wanted
to see them in action. So we
fired some of them on the lawn
in front of his headquarters.
And it was a pretty good
show. It turned out that he
was Commanding Officer also
of what is now called Camp
(Fort) Irwin, which is an artil-
lery training range. So he said
that we could go out to Camp
Irwin and use Goldstone Lake
which was in one corner of
Camp Irwin.”

Goldstone Lake proved to be
a good test area for the rock-
ets, but when the California In-
stitute of Technology with Lau-
ritsen as the Director of Re-
search was given a large rock-
et development program cov-
ering experimental work on a
whole series of weapons, Gold-
stone proved inadequate, even
when used in conjunction with
ranges at Camp Pendleton and
Salton Sea. In particular the
air launched tests tied up the
whole range and brought all
other testing to a halt.

With this background we
can pick up Lauritsen’s ac-
count shortly after Burroughs
first visited him at Goldstone
and they both agreed on the
importance of the Navy having
a new large facility for avia-
tion ordnance and rockets:

“By that time it was clear
to us and to the Navy that we
needed much more range than
we had at Goldstone and much
better facilities. So after some
searching, studying maps of
Southern California and dis-

(Continued on Page 11)

JFK VISIT — At exactly 12:50 p.m., June 7, 1963, the
late John F. Kennedy, then President of the United States,
paid a visit to Michelson Laboratory. The event concluded
days of planning that were known as Project 1-63. Mr.
Kennedy was the only Commander-in-Chief ever to in-
spect the Center's facilities.

O-IN-CC BUILDING FIRE — To many “old timers”
the date of the 0-in-CC Building fire is a bit hazy after
22 years, but not to Nan Halsey, of NAF, she was in the
building when it broke out at 9:30 a.m. on Friday, March
8, 1946.

é FORERUNNER OF SALT WELLS? — Could
not only served. .its. purpose, . be. This primitive press, is,believed to :be ..
the first constructed on the West Coast in

-~ = et ,

1941 for the dry extrusion of solid propel-

Thomas Lauritsen.

lant by Dr. C. C. Lauritsen and his son Dr.
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Secretary Knox Signed Order

Prior to Autumn, 1943, the
area now within the boundar-
ies of the Naval Weapons Cen-
ter was known only to the few
hardy prospectors who tra-
versed the shimmeringsands
of the Indian Wells Valley to
and from their mines and to
the 26 who bravely filed home-
stead claims.

Today, the swish of rockets
and missiles and the whine of
supersonic jets rend the still
air of the Mojave Desert
where once only the sharp
crack of mule skinners’ whips
broke the stillness of the des-
ert air as 20-mule borax teams
and the Nadeau freight teams
plod the roads across the Val-
ley.

This contrast between the
old and the new is a product
of 25 years of research and de-
velopment by the Naval Weap-
ons Center (NWC) since its of-
ficial establishment as the Na-
val Ordnance Test Station
(NOTS) on Nov. 8, 1943.

NOTS, or NWC as it is known
today, was born out of the urg-
ent need for aircraft rockets
during World War II when the
United States trailed a poor
fourth to Germany, Russia,
and England.

%

DR. C. C. LAURITSEN
. . rocket pioneer

GOLDSTONE LAKE 1942 — CalTech’s test
operations moved to. Goldsione Dry Lake ... 8;1943,-CalTech moved to NOTS, Inyokern .

near Barstow in 1942, First rocket was fired

Started by CalTech During
WW Il Days at Goldstone

The Wartime Office of Re-
search and - Development as-
signed the California Institute
of Technology the task of over-
coming Germany’s lead in roc-
kets.

Dr. C. C. Lauritsen, a World
War II rocket specialist, at the
request of the Government, re-
turned from England to take
charge of the CalTech pro-
gram.

Serving primarily during the
war years as adjunct to CIT’s
rocket development and test-
ing, the NWC mission was that
of research, development and
testing of weapons, with par-
ticular emphasis on aviation
ordnance and additionally to
furnish primary training in the
use of these weapons.

Development and testing un-
dertaken by the Institute from
1939 to 1942 was accomplished
in the populated Pasadena
area. In 1942, CalTech’s test
operations were moved to
Goldstone Dry Lake, near Bar-
stow, where the first actual
rocket firing was on July 2. A
rocket - driven retroacting

_ depth-charge, it was known as

a "retro-bomb.”

Goldstone’s area soon proved
inadequate, and on Nov. 8,
1943, the Naval Ordnance Test
Station, Inyokern (changed to
Naval Weapons Center on July
1, 1967), was established by di-
rective of then Secretary of the
Navy Frank Knox as an activ-
ity of the 11th Naval District
under the cognizance of the
Bureau of Ordnance.

First Operations From
Harvey Field at Inyokern

Nine hundred square miles
of level and comparatively
mountainous desert were set
aside for the permanent Navy
rocket and related weapons re-
search facility.

BARREN DESERT IN 1943—This was the
scene that faced those who were to build

NWC. But a world-wide war was on. “We
need it—build it,” was the order. They did!

KODIAK HANGAR UNDER CONSTRUCTION AT HARVEY FIELD, JUNE 14, 1944

on July 2. Area proved inadequate. On Nov.
(now NWC, China Lake.)

Most of this land was public
domain; a small part was own-
ed by the State of California;
another small parcel was un-
der Army jurisdiction and an
even smaller portion was priv-
ately owned by homesteaders.

The portion under Army re-
sponsibility was the Inyokern
Airport — Harvey Field —
which later became the first
actual operations point of the
NWC organization.

Arrangements were made to
transfer or trade unclaimed
land to the Navy, and that un-
der State or Army control was
“traded.” Privately owned
acreage was condemned and
subsequently purchased under
the Second War Powers Act.

In November 1944, 338 sq.
mi. of land was added to the
original 900.

The first construction was
authorized in November 1943,
calling for $160,000 for erec-
tion of temporary housing at
the airfield and for an ord-

. nance. fest area on the China

Lake site, which was to include

barracks, mess halls, storage
facilities, shop buildings, rec-
reation huts, dispensary spot-
ting towers and some roads.

By the winter of 1943, the
first 3.5-inch rockets, modific-
cations of an English weapon,
were fired from the dry bot-
tom of China Lake on what is
now C-Range. These tests used
the CIT high velocity aircraft
rocket (HVAR) and were flown
by FAW Squadron 14, an ex-
perimental squadron assigned
to the rocket development pro-
gram.

Eight Quonset Huts Start
For Embryonic NWC in ‘44

Still in its infancy, the Cen-
ter, on Feb. 29, 1944, was com-
prised of eight Quonset huts
and the test ranges which were
then being set up. Rocket de-
velopment was speeding
ahead.

The first permanent facili-
ties were provided for in con-
tracts, signed March 7, 1944,
involving $25,932,140. Fifteen

(Continued on Page 4)
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China Lake Begins to Take Shape

{Continued from Page 3)

months later this contract was
terminated by the Government,
93 per cent complete, after an
expenditure of $54,952,221, ov-
er twice as much as the con-
tract had originally specified.

Several hundred specialized
buildings, barracks, sewage dis-
posal, telephone, electrical and
water systems, runways and
roads were provided. This con-
struction project furnished fa-
cilities for about 8,000 persons
(no family quarters) and inclu-
ded buildings still utilized to-
day.

At the beginning of construe-
tion, no labor force was avail-

DR. L. T. E. THOMPSON
1st Technical Director

able; therefore, a nation - wide
recruitment program was es-
tablished. Some 4,500 workers
traveled to China Lake to swell
the ranks of construction
Crews.

1944 HARVEY FIELD ACTION — “Tiny Tim,” a 11.75-inch,

24,000 Hired 1st Year,
Work Force Only 7,000

The turnover was tremen-
dous — during the first year,
some 24,000 people were hired,
yet the maximum work force
at any one time was only 7.-
000.
Those hardy souls surviving
the demoralization effects of
heat, sand storms, and the
most primitive of living accom-
modations laugh about the “old
days” now.

Says one, “There were three
kinds of people — those com-
ing, those working, and those
leaving."”

Another states, “Unless you
had your own trailer, you had
no family. Wives lived in the
women’'s quarters; husbands
stayed in the men’'s dorms; and
the kids, well, they stayed with
Grandmaw!”

A third old - timer tells of a
sand storm in mid - summer.
Trenches for water, sewer, and
other lines were dug, hundreds
of acres had been scraped of
all vegetation. A hot wind came
up, sweeping tons of silt-like
sand, filling trenches, and cau-
sing a cessation of all activity.
The workers ran to their bar-
racks for protection only to find
them just as sand-filled as the
area outdoors.

One Quonset Occupied By
Co, Exec., Ex[._nr. Officer

First administrative offices
of the embryonic Naval Weap-
ons Center was the Quonset
hut at Harvey Field, jointly
occupied by Center Command-
er Capt. S. E. Burroughs, the
Executive Officer, and Exper-
imental Officer, as both living
and working quarters.

Soon after the Center was es-
tablished, a need was determ-
ined for technical aviation fa-
cilities and experiments. In De-
cember 1943, Aviation Ord-
nance Development Group 1
was commissioned at the Naval
Air Station, San Diego, with
LCdr. Thomas F. Pollock, as
Officer-in-Charge.

The combined mission of the
Group was to provide techni-
cal aviation facilities and
equipment for the develop-
ment of aviation ordnance, to
flight test such ordnance, arm-
ament, and experimental
items, and to provide aircraft
utility services.

First Technical Group Moves
From Harvey to Armitage

First based at Harvey Field,
the unit, eight months later,
moved to their permanent fa-
cilities at Armitage Field on
the China Lake site.

In fulfillment of its seconda-
ry mission of training, the
Group initiated a two - weeks
course of instruction on Aug.
25, 1944 on rockets, fuzes, and
handling procedures. Some 150
officers and enlisted personnel
received instruction on the 5-
inch HVAR “Holy Moses” and
the 11.75-inch AR “Tiny Tim”
before the course discontinued
in May 1945.

1,250-1b. rocket hangs under wing of fighter aircraft await-

ET R TR e S e L IS

FIRST O-IN-C — LCdr. Tom Pollock was the first officer in
charge of the Aviation Ordnance Development Group 1 at
Harvey Field. He recently retired as a captain.

COMMANDING
OFFICER

ing pilot for test firing. The Center was even then per-

fecting launchers. Three were being tested.

3 : E

COMMANDER’'S OFFICE,
1944 — Standing outside the
No. 1 Quonset hut at China
Lake in earlier times are: (I-
r) Cdr. John Richmeond;
RAdm. W. L. Friedell; Cdr.
Sandqguist; Congressman
Sheperd; Cdr. Bob Atkins;
and first C.0., Capt. S. E.
Burroughs.

Navy Takes Over CalTech
Projects During 1945 =

CalTech’s work was primar-
ily concerned with the devel-
opment and testing of rockets,
propellants and launchers.
When it was decided that the
Center should become a perm-
anent facility of the Bureau of
Ordnance, it was also determ-
ined that the Navy, in order to
house the expected thousands
of personnel needed, would
begin-a vast construction pro-
gram.

Between April and October,
1945, the Center took over
most of the CalTech projects.
Homes, schools, shopping facil-
ities, Michelson Lab and other
permanent buildings rose to
transform the desert outpost
into a community with a single
purpose — to provide weapons.

(Continued on Page 5)
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Dr.Wm.McLean Named
New Technical Director

(Continued from Page 8)

gy Commission; J. A. Hutche-
son, Director of Research La-
boratories, Westinghouse Elec-
tric Corp.; R. H. Kent, Ballis-
tics Research Laboratories, Ab-
erdeen Proving Ground; C. C.
Lauritsen, Professor of Phys-
ies, California Institute of Tech-
nology; and F. C. Lindvall,
Chairman, Engineering Divi-
sion, California Institute of
Technology.

From 1948-1951 about 1,000
family dwelling units were
added, as well as dormitories
and trailer spaces to provide
more housing for the ever in-
creasing populace.

New Ranges Added

Two new ranges were added
in 1951. One of them, T-
Range, was opened in January
for rocket proof firing. The
other, K-3 Range, was opened
in March for use in cross-wind
rocket firings. The Projectile
Range, at Randsburg Wash, 25
miles southeast of the Center’s
headquarters, was opened dur-
ing ceremonies on May 16,
1952.

The Projectile Range, cover-
ing 320 square miles and in-
cluding countless test facili-
ties, greatly broadened the
scope of test and evaluation
work accomplished here.

Dr. Wm. B. McLean

Television came to China
Lake in 1953 upon completion
of the Laurel Mountain Repeat-
er Station, the only one of its
kind in the nation.

Community recreation activ-
ities were enhanced in 1954
with the completion of th e
Community Center. A focal
point for social activities. The
16,000 square foot, highly flex-
ible building is used for meet-
ings, parties, dances, and gen-
eral community functions.

Dr. William B. McLean as-
sumed responsibilities as the
Center’s Technical Director on
April 2, 1954. Dr. McLean was
named to succeed Dr. F. W.
Bown, who left to assume di-
rection of the Standards Lab-
oratories at Boulder, Colo. The
appointment was made by
RAdm. M. F. Schoeffel, Chief
BuOrd, upon the recommenda-

tion of the Center’s Advisory
Board.

Completed in mid-1954 was
the Supersonic Naval Ord-
nance Research Track —
SNORT — used in captive test-
ing of ordnance items. SNORT
gained acclaim with the devel-
opment of RAPEC (Rocket As-
sisted Personnel Ejection Cat-
apault), the ejection seat capa-
ble of propelling pilots 225 feet
into the air from their low-al-
titude flying craft, thus saving
lives of jet pilots faced with
low - altitude crash emergen-
cies.

G-4 Range, for high - speed
terminal ballistic studies with
rockets and similar ordnance,
was opened on December,
1954, and in February, 1955,
the move was completed from
the temporary G-1 Range to
the permanent G-1 Range, put-
ting into operation one of the
nation’s most up-to-date and
most completely instrumenta-
ted ranges for guided missiles.
The move to the permanent
G-2 Range was completed in
August.

In mid-1956, development of
the 19-round Mighty Mouse
Rocket Launcher was an-
nounced. Two military units
joined the Center during this
year. The Marine Guided Mis-
sile Test Unit was activated to
test and evaluate selected mis-
sile systems and components
for the Corps and to assist the
Center in the evaluation of the
Terrier missile. The Unit con-
tinued the work begun by the
1st Terrier SAM Battalion.

VX-5 Arrives

Air Development Squadron
Five (VX-5), the Navy’s top
test squadron, arrived on July
6, 1956, under the command
of Capt. F. B. Gilkeson. It was
here on Charlie Range that
VX-5 made itself more well
known with the development
of loft bombing techniques, the
most effective techniques yet
devised which permits the air-
craft to get away after the re-
lease of nuclear bombs. VX-5
continues to write the instruc-
tion books for pilots.

(Continued on Page 11)
F-‘.\. &
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BLANDY AVENUE, 1945, SANS TREES — This is the sight
that greeted China Lake pioneers. The community from the

by a Douglas Skyraider during tests in 1950
over China Lake ranges.

MIGHTY MOUSE — A 2.75-inch folding-fin
rocket, developed at NWC, is fired in salvo

B

W £

Operations were conducted from Harvey
Field before the air units moved to Armi-
tage Field. Tiny Tim weighed 1,250-lbs.

TINY TIM — An 11.75-inch torpedo-shaped
rocket, developed during World War Il, is
fired over China Lake ranges during 1944.

o

Center Commander on down, helped plant the trees furn-
ished by Public Works along Blandy. i
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Scientific Community Becomes Reity

(Ceontinued from Page 5)

Since 1945, there has been a
continuing stress on a fully in-
tegrated weapon program, ut-
ilizing the best of tools and
the most competent engineer-
ing and scientific personnel
available. Because of this em-
phasis, NWC has been able to
make significant contributions
to the nation’s defense arsen-
al and has prepared to under-
take increasingly more com-
plex weapon development
tasks.

Ground firings of aviation
ordnance items was begun in
mid-1945. About this time, too,
the Salt Wells Plant was open-
ed for experimental work in
the field of explosives.

Waves Arrive July 18, 1944,
Marines on July 17, 1945

Contingents of Waves began
to arrive on July 18, 1944 and
reached a total strength of 150
during their assignment here.
Their ranks depleted to 28,
the group was transferred to
San Diego in April, 1946. Dur-
ing their tour here the Waves
were quartered in what is now
the Personnel and Housing
Buildings.

Former China Lake Waves
still in the area are Maria
Kochman, Rose Gonzales, Haz-
el Coleman, Terry Wiruth,
Joey Deffes, Marilyn Nompleg-
gi, and Laura Patton.

On July 17, 1945, the Ma-
rines arrived at China Lake to
supplement the civilian Secur-
ity Police and the Marine
Barracks was commissioned.
Throughout the years several
additional Marine groups were
assigned to NWC from time to
time, the SAM Battalion, the
Marine Corps Guided Missile
Training Unit, the Marine
Corps Guided Missile Test Un-
it, the Marine Corps Sidewin-
der Project Unit, and the Ma-
rine Corps Redeye Project Un-
it. The all time high of the
Marine Barracks was 280 men.

The Marine Barracks was
disestablished during June,
1963. The last official act of
the Marines was to provide an
honor guard for President
John F. Kennedy when he vis-
ited the Center on June 7,
1963.

Bennington Plaza Almost
Complete, Community Grows

The community began to be
a real community, in August,
1945, a nursery school was
opened; shopping facilities at
Bennington Plaza were nearly
as complete as they are today;
the old Movie Hut was remod-
eled into a small chapel, utiliz-

ed by all faiths until Nov. 3,
1957, when the new $350,000
All Faith Chapel was dedicat-
ed.

In 1946, Dr. L. T. E. Thomp-
son was formally named Tech-
nical Director, though he had
come to the Center in 1945 as
Director of Research, Develop-
ment, and Tests from the Na-

WAVES’ CONTINGENT ARRIVED JULY 18, 1944 AND LEFT APRIL 30, 1946. SEVEN OF THOSE WAVE& ARE STILL EEE.

val Ordnance Plant, Indianapo-
lis, Ind.

Late in 1946, B4 Range was
put into operation for captive
ordnance testing.

Named China Lake in 1948
By Post Office Department

China Lake became the name
of the Center community on
Jan. 16, 1948, when the Post

Office Department designated
it as the name of an indepen-
dent post office and thereby
ended the designation of the
Center office as a branch of
the Inyokern Post Office. Home
delivery of mail was begun in
June.

A second major technical fa-
cility was dedicated in 1948 —
the Variable - Angle Launcher

at the Pasadena Annex on May
7. A $2,000,000 test facility for
the study of water-entry prob-
lems of torpedoes and other
underwater missiles.

The Center Advisory Board
was activated in December,
1948, to provide counsel by out-
standing scientists, industrial-
ists, and administrators.

Members of the first Advis-
ory Board were L. M. K. Boel-
ter, Dean, College of Engineer-
ing, University of California
at Los Angeles; R. B. Brode,
Professor of Physics, Universi-
ty of California at Berkeley;
W. R. Brode, Associate Direc-
tor, Bureau of Standards,
Washington, D.C.; R. W. Cairns,
Assistant Director of Research,
Hercules Powder Co., Wiling-
ton, Del.; H. W. Emmons, Pro-
fessor of Engineering Science,
Harvard University; L. R. Haf-
stad, Director of Reactor De-
velopment, U.S. Atomic Ener-

(Continued on Page 9)
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Michelson Laboratory
Dedicated May, 1948

{Contfinued from Page 4)

Its new concrete shining in
the intense sunlight, Michelson
Laboratory, was dedicated May
8, 1948. 1t is the focal point of
NWC’s activity. Built at a cost
of $10 million, it is the largest
and the most completely equip-
ped laboratory of its kind in
this country.

Comprised of 16 units, the
structure is joined in such a
way as to minimize possible
earthquake damage. The added
expense involved was repaid in
a 5-minute span in 1952 when
the nearby Bear Mountain
Fault slipped, leaving Tehach-
api and Arvin in shambles.

Presently housed in the huge
laboratory are five departmen-
tal organizations of the Naval
Weapons Center. Among these
is the Systems Development
Department whose major func-
tions is to develop the means
for testing hardware such as
rockets and missiles, propel-
lants, explosives and products
of other department’s research
and development efforts. The
Aviation Ordnance Depart-
ment, the Weapons Develop-
ment Department, the Research
Department and the Engineer-
ing Department also occupy
Michelson Lab. The Weapons
Planning Group is also housed
in the structure.

Pasadena, Once the Only
Facility of Its Kind

Pasadena, once the only fa-
cility in the United States de-
voted to Navy rocket, aviation
ordnance and underwater wea-
pons development, gave the na-
tion such weapons as the now
famous Polaris, RAT, ASROC,
and the Mark 46 torpedo.

When the Navy took over
weapons development opera-
tions from CalTech in 1945, the
existing scattered groups were
combined into the single unit
of the Naval Ordnance Test
Station, under the direction of
Dr. L. T. E. Thompson, who
later became the first Techni-
cal Director.

Some Pasadena projects
were taken over by the Gen-
eral Tire and Rubber Compa-

ny, under contract, and re-
mained under jurisdiction of
that company until 1948 when
the 430 Pasadena personnel
were transferred to Navy Civil
Service. Personnel at the Pasa-
dena Annex numbered about
1,000 when it became a sepa-
rate facility in July, 1967.

G-Ranges Developed in ‘43,
First Rocket Fired March ‘44

During the late 1943 and
early 1944. temporary G-1 and
G-2 ranges, for ground firings
of rockets, had been laid out,
and the first rockets were fired
on G2 Range on March 30,
1944, By the middle of April
temporary towers had been
constructed along the bounda-
ries of the ranges so that spot-
ting of impacts could begin,
and on May 1, spotting actual-
ly began on G-1 Range. Perm-
anent spotting towers replaced
the temporary structures in
December, 1944.

Launchers, range buildings,
and other test facilities were
added at these temporary ran-
ges to meet the Center’s im-
mediate needs. In the mean-
time, the permanent ranges
were begun, and in 1945, the
first testing for a guided mis-
sile program was undertaken
with the result that G-1 Range
became the area for testing of
guided missiles rather than
rockets.

By July, 1944, B-1 and B-2
Ranges were opened for air-
to-ground firings of rockets.

Frenzied Construction in ‘44,
1,070 Dwelling Units Built

Finally, after a year and a
half of frenzied construction of
buildings to carry out the mis-
sion of the Center, in 1944 and
1945, a number of homes were
begun. In a short time, 1070
units — duplexes, apartment
buildings, senior and junior
officers’ quarters, dormatories
and prefabricated housing —
rose to contain both construc-
tion people and scientists, en-
gineers and other personnel
engaged in rocket and missile
development.

MICHELSON LABORATORY — From this focal point of re-
search and development NWC’s scientists and engineers

VARIABLE ANGLE LAUNCHER — This
launcher, built at the cost of $2 million at

The first elementary school
at China Lake was opened in
eight Quonset huts in Septem-
ber, 1944. By the end of the
term, 13 huts were in use. Pri-
or to 1944, both high school
and elementary school stu-
dents travelled to schools in
Ridgecrest, Trona, Randsburg,
and Johannesbhurg, up to 26

MICHELSON LAB DEDICATION — The Ma-
rine color guard opens ceremonies for the
dedication of Michelson Laboratory on May

miles from the Center and 34
miles from Inyokern. The Sher-
man E. Burroughs High
School was begun in 1945, and
November of that year, class-
es were started.

Today, Burroughs High
School is housed in a new mod-
ern plant in Ridgecrest and
shares its campus with the Bak-

have contributed over 75 per cent of the airborne weapon-
ry of the free world today, including Zuni and Shrike.

8, 1948, with RAdm. Switzer, Center Com-
mander, on the speaker’s stand. Dr. Robert
A. Millikan gave the dedication address.

Pasadena Annex Morris Dam, for the test-
ing of torpedos was dedicated

1948.

ersfield College Desert Divi-
sion.

Contract Let for Salt Wells
Pilot Plant Janvary 30, 1945

On January 30, 1945, a con-
tract was negotiated for the
construction of the Salt Wells
Pilot Plant. During this month
the permanent Naval Dispen-
sary was commissioned, then
responsible for full medical
care of both Civil Service and
CalTech employees as well as
for service personnel.

Families first occupied sin-
gle - family dwellings in the
fall of 1944, and as more and
more housing was completed,
they were immediately occu-
pied. The last Hill Duplexes
were completed in 1952, with
an additional 500 Capeharts
in 1961,

With the -vital, immediate
construction now almost fin-
ished, testing operations as-
sumed an amazing urgency. In
March, 1954, the K-2 Range
was opened for use in rocket
terminal ballistics studies.

1945 Facility Established As
BuOrd Independent Activity

In April, 1945, the Center
was established as an inde-
pendent activity to carry out
the research and development
program of the Bureau of
Ordnance.

(Continued on Page 8)
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NWC History Fealures
Ingenuity, Responsive
Effort, and Solutions

Monumental Achievements Highlight Radiant
- Quarter Century of Engineering Excellence

i _ ‘ LETHAL CHAPARRAL—System, developed here for Army,
WEAPON A — An anfisub- 1965-66, has the deadly sting of four Sidewinder missiles.
marine rocket, fererunner of
ASROC, was developed - at
China Lake in the 1950s. It
had a range of 1,000 yards
and was fired from launch-

ers mounted on bow of de- SIDEWINDER IN FLEET — The famous carrier USS Ticonderoga. The missile was
stroyers. Sidewinder, air-to-air guided missile, is load- conceived and developed at China Lake in
ed on an F8 aircraft aboard the aircraft  1956. It became operational in 1957,

ZUNI ROCKET — A versa-
tile 5-inch air-to-ground or
air-to-air rocket, is fired
from an F9F during its ear-
ly development here. It be-
came operational with the
Fleet in 1960.

o = Es :

ASROC, SUBMARINE KILLER — This supersonic anti-sub-
marine rocket was developed by the Pasadena Annex.

POLARIS — The famous Polaris missile shows its ability to
accomplish transition from underwater launch to powered
flight at San Clemente Island in 1960.

SHRIKE MISSILE — The nation’s first anti-radar guided
missile was conceived here in 1959 and introduced into the
Fleet in 1965.

“BIG STOOP” — A two-stage surface-to- in 1950. Many successful rockets and mis- BARRAGE ROCKETS —World War Il days included the - = o : :
TERRIER MISSILES — These anti-aircraft missiles were surface experimental rocket is fired from siles evolved from such tests. A whole se- testing of barrage rockets. Men ready rockets for firing EARLY RETRO ROCKETS — It is report firing rocket, were being fested at Salton Sea
tested here in 1957 by GMU-25 and the Marines. the Vantos 1 launcher on the old G-1 Range . ries of the “Bumble Bee” family were fired. from a Jeep launcher on one of the Center’s ranges. these retro, rockets, before, the, forward .. in 1942 as a defense against submarines.



